
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
September 10, 2012 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Steve West, Saint Mark United Methodist Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Presentation – Jefferson County Health Action Partnership 
7. Mayor's Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Approval Of Minutes –August 27, 2012 (Regular Meeting) 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 4339 – A Resolution Appointing A Council Member To Fill The 
Unexpired Term Of Mary Lee Rice 

11. Oath of Office – John Henley 

Old Business 

12. Resolution Number 4335 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 28-
23-2-4-3-Rr-0, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
Said Demolition To Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Directing The City 
Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged 
Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners 

13. Ordinance 409-A – Rezoning – 400 Vestavia Parkway, Lot 2, Koger Executive Center; 
Rezone From Vestavia Hills O-2 (maximum 3 stories) to Vestavia Hills O-2 (maximum 4 
stories); Highpoint Office Center, LLC, Owners 

14. Ordinance Number 2331-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2331 To 
Amend §4.5 Entitled Fences 



15. Resolution 4336 – A Resolution Approving A General Fund Budget, A Special Fund 
Budget And A Capital Fund Budget For The City Of Vestavia Hills For Fiscal Year 
2012-2013  

16. Resolution Number 4337 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For A Hydraulic Excavator 
For The Public Services Department 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Citizens Comments 
18. Executive Session 
19. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 27, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Council President called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President  
      Jim Sharp, President Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce 
      Linda Allison  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Director, Public Services 
      Jennifer Swann, Public Services 
      Mike Swann, Public Services 
 
 Invocation was given by Michael Johnson, Crossroads Community Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUESTS 
 

• Ginger M. Barbee, candidate for Probate Judge, Place Number 2, introduced 
herself and asked for support in the upcoming general election. 

• John Henley, candidate for City Council, Place Number 1, introduced himself and 
asked for support in the upcoming municipal election. 

• George Pierce, candidate for City Council, Place Number 4, introduced himself 
and asked for support in the upcoming municipal election. 

• Mr. Ammons welcomed the following Boy Scouts: 
o Brendan Thomas; 801 Comer Circle; Troop 93 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 2 
 

o Daniel Darwin; 2912 Jimamie Lane; Troop 93 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating the month of September 2012 as 
“National Recovery Month.”  He read the proclamation and presented it to Carol 
Williams, Addiction Coalition. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating the month of September 2012 as 
“Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month.”  He read the proclamation and presented it to 
Phyllis Lawrence, survivor of Ovarian Cancer. 
 
 
 

MAYOR’S REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Robertson presented Derrick Marshall with a Certificate of Appreciation for 
his service to the City as a volunteer intern. 

• The Mayor stated that the Municipal Center will be closed on Monday, September 
3, 2012 for Labor Day. 

• ALDOT has begun installation of the “smart lights” on Highway 280 
• The sinkhole north of Wal-mart Neighborhood Market has continued to grow and 

the City has made ALDOT aware of the repairs needed.  ALDOT has indicated 
that they will repair the work.  Until then, the area has been cordoned off with 
caution markers.  The Mayor stated that he hopes they will repair it soon. 

• Public Services has an evening crew that has been spraying for mosquitoes.  The 
Mayor stated that they also have tablets to place in standing water to kill the 
mosquito larvae. 

• Chief Rary presented a certificate to Officer Derrick Wilcox for a 
prostitution/drug bust he made based on observances of a local motel and 
previous complaints. 

• Lt. Brian Gilham introduced a new program through Project 365 called 
“Operation Overwatch” sponsored by the Vestavia Hills Police Department, Kelly 
Sturwold of Two Men and a Truck and the Fire Department with Fire Marshal 
Greg Gilchrist.  Lt. Gilham stated that this program follows last year’s “Shades of 
Vestavia” program. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 

• Lt. Tim Holcomb showed a sampling of videos taken from the PD’s new onboard 
video cameras. 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 3 
 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce encouraged residents to check their property for standing water to 
avoid mosquito infestation. 

• Ms. Allison announced the grand re-opening of the Community Room at the 
Library on September 5. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for the month of July 2012.  He read 
and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of August 13, 2012 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve them as 

presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Sharp.  Voice vote as 
follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison - abstained 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4333 

Resolution Number 4333 – A Resolution approving certain improvements on 
Interstate 459 as designated in Project Number IM-I-459(307) I-459 
Pavement Rehabilitation from South of SR-38 (US-280) to North of 
CR-143 (Grants Mill Road) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4333 was by Ms. Allison and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mayor Zaragoza explained that this agreement allows improvements on and 
around I-459.  He stated that only a short section of the roadway is in the City, but in 
order to receive federal funding, ALDOT needs this approval. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding the request, he closed the public hearing and asked for the 
question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4334 

Resolution Number 4334 – A Resolution Approving The Final 10% Of The 2011-
2012 Fiscal Year Budget For The City Of Vestavia Hills Alabama 

 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4334 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that this is the final 10% of the current year’s budget.  
This approval is procedural pursuant to Alabama law because 90% was approved at the 
beginning of the fiscal year. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TAKEN AT THIS MEETING) 
 

• Resolution Number 4335 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 
28-23-2-4-3-Rr-0, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, 
Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In 
Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
And Calling For Said Demolition To Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills 
And Directing The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such 
Demolition To Be Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure 
Exists As A Municipal Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law 
Against The Owner Or Owners 

• Ordinance 409-A – Rezoning – 400 Vestavia Parkway, Lot 2, Koger Executive 
Center; Rezone From Vestavia Hills O-2 (maximum 3 stories) to Vestavia Hills O-2 
(maximum 4 stories); Highpoint Office Center, LLC, Owners 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 5 
 

• Ordinance Number 2331-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2331 To 
Amend §4.5 Entitled Fences 

• Resolution 4336 – A Resolution Approving A General Fund Budget, A Special Fund 
Budget And A Capital Fund Budget For The City Of Vestavia Hills For Fiscal Year 
2012-2013  

• Resolution Number 4337 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For A Hydraulic 
Excavator For The Public Services Department 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council needed to move into Executive Session in 
order to discuss the purchase/sale of property.  He explained that the Session is estimated 
to last approximately 30 minutes and asked Mr. Boone to verify that is a legal reason for 
an Executive Session.   
 
 Mr. Boone concurred and Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion for the Council to move into Executive Session for the discussion 

of purchase/sale for an estimated 30 minutes was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Ms. Allison.  On a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons– yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 The Council exited the Chamber at 5:52 PM and entered into Executive Session.  
At 7:46 PM, they re-entered the Chamber and Mr. Ammons called the meeting back to 
order. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:47 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. Sharp 

seconded the motion.  Voice vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 



City Council Minutes 
August 27, 2012, 

Page 6 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4339 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4339 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A COUNCIL MEMBER TO FILL 
THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF MARY LEE RICE, COUNCIL 
PLACE NUMBER 1 

 
WHEREAS, in the 2008 City of Vestavia Hills Municipal Election, Mary Lee 

Rice qualified as the sole candidate for City Council Place Number 1; and 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2008, the City Council adopted Resolution Number 

3872, Certificate of Election to Mary Lee Rice for Place Number 1, Vestavia Hills City 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2010, Mary Lee Rice moved her residency to Tennessee 

and tendered her resignation from the Vestavia Hills City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-41, Code of Alabama, 1975, requires that the 

vacancy of Council Place Number 1 be filled by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined it would be in the best public interest to 

appoint John Henley to fill the unexpired term of Mary Lee Rice, Council Place Number 

1. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. John Henley is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of Mary Lee Rice, 

Council Place Number 1; and 

2. Said Resolution Number 4339 is effective September 10, 2012 following 

adoption and approval. 

 

 



Resolution Number 4339 
Page 2 

 
DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 10th day of September, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



OATH OF OFFICE 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 
 
 I, John Henley, solemnly swear that I am eligible for the Office of 
Council Member of Vestavia Hills and will execute the duties of same 
according to the best of my ability and that I will support the Constitutions 
and will obey the laws of the United States and of the State of Alabama; that 
I will in all respects, observe the provisions of the Ordinances of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, and will faithfully discharge the duties of the Office of 
Council Member. 
 
 I, John Henley, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of 
the United States and the Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I 
continue a citizen thereof; and that I will faithfully and honestly discharge 
the duties of the office upon which I am about the enter, to the best of my 
ability, so help me God. 
 
 
 
     
 _______________________________ 
       John Henley 
 
 
 Sworn and subscribed before me this the 10th day of September, 2012. 
 
 
 
     
 _______________________________ 
       Judge Alan L. King 
 



Resolution Number 4335 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4335 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 3363 
MOUNTAINSIDE ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
PARCEL ID# 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0, IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 
THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF 
ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; 
AND CALLING FOR SAID DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED 
BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE 
COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST 
THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel I.D. Number 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to 
the life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on Jeffrey A. and Terri L. 
Knowles; Jeffrey A. Knowles; AmSouth Bank; Mortgage Electronic Registration 
Systems, Inc.; GMAC Mortgage, LLC F/K/A GMAC Mortgage Corporation; Department 
of Treasury; Internal Revenue Service; Jefferson County Sewer Service Office and 
Birmingham Water Works, a copy of same was sent via certified mail, properly 
addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 



Resolution Number 4335 
Page 2 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

Appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 10, 2012 at 5:00 p.m. as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 10, 2012 at 5:00 p.m. 
and after due deliberation, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds 
that the structure standing at 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
ID# 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the 
citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and 
demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-
53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance 
Number 2382 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama;  
 
 Section 2. That said demolition is to be performed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills; and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4335 
Page 3 

 
 
 ADOPTED this the 10th day of September, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 10th 
day of September, 2012 while in regular session on Monday, September 10, 2012, and 
the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 409-A 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 409-A 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NUMBER 409 AND 
TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING OF A 
PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS O-2 WITH 
CONDITIONS TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-2 WITH AMENDED 
CONDITIONS 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills O-2 with a 

maximum height of 3 stories as conditioned in Ordinance Number 409 to Vestavia Hills 

O-2 with a maximum of 4 stories;  

400 Vestavia Parkway, 
Lot 2, Koger Executive Center 

Highpoint Office Center, LLC, Owner(s) 
 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 10th day of September, 2012. 

 
 
 

Steve Ammons 
Council President 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Ordinance Number 409-A 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 409-A is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 10th day of September, 2012 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Ordinance Number 409-A 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     July 31, 2012 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0812-29 
•  
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Application for rezoning from Vestavia Hills O-2 with 

maximum 3 stories to Vestavia Hills O-2 with maximum 4 stories 
•  
• PROPOSED USE(S):      O-2 office 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION.  400 Vestavia Parkway, Vestavia Hills AL  35216 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Highpoint Office Center LLC; c/o McNamara & Carver, 

PA, 2907 Bay to Bay Blvd, Suite 201, Tampa FL  33629 
 

• REPRESENTING AGENT:  Laurence D. Weygand, Weygand Surveying, 
Homewood AL  35209 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  This property is located on Vestavia Parkway on the 

side of the mountain and currently has a 4-story office building constructed upon it.  
The property recently was purchased and a zoning certificate was requested.  As staff 
pulled zoning information and examined the building, it was noted that the building 
would be considered a 4-story building by the definitions set forth in the City’s 
Zoning Code and recommendation was made to the owner to modify the existing 
zoning from a maximum of 3-stories to 4-stories.  The Owner has already requested 
and received a variance for required parking since that was also deficient from the 
Zoning Code.   

 
• CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This property is 

located in Figure 18 of the Vestavia Hills Comprehensive Master Plan, located in an 
area designated as Village Center.  The use as a professional office building is 
consistent with the plan. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Clerk Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / subdivision 

requirements related to this proposal, including application, notification, 
setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent to property 
owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and find it 
does meet the minimum requirements of the zoning.    

 



 2

City Clerk Recommendation:  Recommend approval  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted with request 

 
P&Z Recommendation: 
 
MOTION Mr. Farrell made a motion to recommend the rezoning of 400 Vestavia Parkway, 

Lot 2, Koger Executive Center from Vestavia Hills O-2 with a maximum of 3-
stories to Vestavia Hills O-2 with a maximum of 4-stories as presented.  Second 
was by Mr. Gilchrist.  Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Ms. Fancher – yes  Mr. House – yes 
Mr. Burrell – yes  Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mr. Gilchrist – yes  Mr. Farrell – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Larson – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

 
 
 



 3

 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2331-A 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2331 TO 
AMEND §4.5 ENTITLED FENCES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama adopted and 

approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the “Vestavia Hills Zoning Code” 

(“Code”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, following a 

public hearing on August 9, 2012, recommended approval of an amendment of §4.5 

“Fences” of said Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council feels it is in the best public interest to amend §4.5 

“Fences” of said Code. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. §4.5 “Fences” of Ordinance Number 2331, the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code, is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

“§4.5  Fences. 
4.5.1 Visibility. No fence or wall shall be permitted 

between the building line and the front lot line 
except as provided in §4.5.3 below. Fences shall not 
be placed within the clear sight triangle as 
determined by the City Engineer. 

4.5.2 No fence shall be erected, installed, constructed or 
otherwise structurally altered in the City except in 
strict compliance with the terms and provisions of 
this ordinance. 

4.5.3 Any person, firm, corporation, partnerships or other 
entity desiring to build a fence on any property 
located within the City shall follow the procedure 
and comply with the following requirements: 

1. Unless it has been approved as part of a 
valid Building Permit, no fence shall be 
erected, installed, constructed or otherwise 
structurally altered on any property until a 
fence permit is issued by the City. 

2. No approval for the issuance of a permit 
shall be made until such time as the Building 
Official and Fire Marshal have approved the 
plans and specifications for the erection, 
installation, construction or structural 



alteration of said wall or fence and certifies 
that the same meet the requirement of 
paragraphs 3 and 4 below. 

3. The person, firm, corporation, partnership or 
other entity applying for a permit shall 
submit plans and specifications for the 
erection, installation, construction or 
structural alteration of the fence. The plans 
and specifications shall include the 
following: 

a. A map or survey of the lot upon 
which the fence will be located. 

b. The location of the fence on the 
property. 

c. The dimensions of the fence, 
including the height, width and 
length. 

d. Estimated cost. 
e. List and description of materials to 

be used. 
4. No fence shall be erected, installed, 

constructed, or otherwise structurally altered 
unless the material utilized therefore is such 
that the grade and quality of said material is 
the same on all sides, including the front and 
back. 

5. In all residential zoning district, fences, 
regardless of height, shall be set back behind 
the front building line or behind the 
minimum front yard setback of an abutting 
residential property, whichever is greater 
except as provided in Sections 6 and 7 
below. 

6. In all residential zoning districts, fences may 
be located between the front building line 
and the front setback line provided said 
fences are open, ornamental in style, 
finished on both sides and excluding any 
chain link or privacy wood fencing. 

7. For security purposes, in all residential 
zoning districts, fences may be located 
between the front building setback and the 
front lot line providing that all of the 
following criteria are met: 



a. The residential property must be a lot 
of record recorded in the Office of 
the Judge of Probate; and 

b. The recorded lot must consist of a 
minimum one (1) acre of property; 
and 

c. The primary residential unit 
constructed upon the property must 
be located a minimum 100’ from the 
front lot line; and 

d. The fence and gate shall be 
constructed so as to be open, 
ornamental and decorative in style 
and constructed of finished stone, 
masonry and/or metal.  Said fencing 
located within the front yard setback 
shall exclude wood and/or chain link 
fencing; and 

e. Said fencing shall be located a 
minimum of 2’ inside the front lot 
line or a minimum of 5’ from any 
public improvements, within the 
right-of-way, whichever is greater.  
Said location shall be approved by 
the City Planner and/or City 
Engineer in order to mitigate adverse 
effects to the subject or adjacent 
properties.  NOTE:  All public 
improvements, including utilities, 
shall be designated on required 
drawings in the form of a survey and 
certified by an Engineer and/or 
Surveyor licensed by the State of 
Alabama; and 

f. Said security gate shall be set back 
minimum 40’ from the edge of 
pavement or at least 2’ inside of the 
private property line, whichever is 
greater; and 

g. A Knox switch/switches shall be 
installed and gate shall be at proper 
width in order to allow access for 
emergency vehicles and shall be 
approved by Fire Marshall prior to 
permitting.” 

 



2. Severability:  If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this Ordinance 

shall be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any other section, clause, provision 

or portion of this Ordinance, which is not in and of itself invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

3. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval, adoption and publication as required by law. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the ________ day of ________________, 

2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2331 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the ________ day of _____________, 2012, as same appears in the 
official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, and 
Vestavia Hills Recreational Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 









Resolution Number 4336 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4336 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET, A SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUND BUDGET AND A CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUND BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2012 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2013. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared and presented a “general fund budget” 

which has been reviewed and amended by the City Council for said period reflecting 

anticipated expenditures in the amount of $30,539,772, including transfers out, to be 

effective for the period beginning October 1, 2012, through September 30, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared a “special fund budget” for said period 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $2,457,508 including transfers from 

the General Fund, to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2012, through 

September 30, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared a “capital projects fund budget” for said 

period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $1,533,725 to be effective for the period 

beginning October 1, 2012, through September 30, 2013. 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-57, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

 Annual appropriation of funds for expenditures of all 
departments and interest on indebtedness:  In all cities, the 
Council shall appropriate the sums necessary for the 
expenditures of the several City departments and for the 
interest on its bonded and other indebtedness, not 
exceeding in the aggregate within ten (10) percent of its 
estimated expenses, and such City Council shall not 
appropriate in the aggregate an amount in excess of its 
annual legally authorized revenue.  But, nothing in this 
section shall prevent such cities from anticipating their 
revenues for the year for which such appropriation was 
made, or from contracting for temporary loans as provided 
in the applicable provision of this title, or from bonding or 
refunding their outstanding indebtedness or from 
appropriating anticipated revenue at any time for the 



Resolution Number 4336 
Page 2 

 
current expenses of the City and interest on the bonded and 
other indebtedness of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$27,485,795, of the municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for 

fiscal year 2012-2013 upon the terms conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$2,211,753, of the municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills 

for fiscal year 2012-2013 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$1,380,353, of the “capital project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2012-2013 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

   1.  The municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the Mayor and submitted to the City Council is hereby 

approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $27,485,795, which said amount is 

not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$30,539,772 multiplied by 90% equals 
$27,485,795; and 

 
   2.  The municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, prepared by the Mayor and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $2,211,753 which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$2,457,508 multiplied by 90% equals 
$2,211,753; and 

 



Resolution Number 4336 
Page 3 

 
   3.  The “capital projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the Mayor and submitted to the City Council is hereby 

approved and adopted to the extent of revenue of $1,380,353 which said amount is not 

exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$1,533,725 multiplied by 90% equals 
$1,380,353; and 

 

   3.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to expend the sum of 

$27,485,795 from the General Fund, $2,211,753 from the Special Revenue Fund and 

$1,380,353 from the Capital Projects Fund for municipal expenses for the period 

beginning October 1, 2012, and ending September 30, 2013. 

   4.  A copy of the budgets is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit “A” 

and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out fully herein. 

5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 10th day of September, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4336 
Page 4 

 
 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 

















Resolution Number 4337 
Page 1 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4337 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS FOR A HYDRAULIC EXCAVATOR 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills received and opened bids for a hydraulic 

excavator on August 14, 2012; and 

 WHEREAS, three (3) bids and one (1) “no bid” were received; and 

 WHEREAS, a detail of the bid results is attached hereto and marked as “Exhibit 

A”.  The City Engineer, in a memorandum dated August 22, 2012, recommended the 

acceptance of Tractor & Equipment Co. in an amount of $106,475; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Tractor & Equipment Co. is hereby accepted in 

an amount of $106,475; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4337 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 10th day of 

September, 2012. 

 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4337 
Page 2 

 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 














	2012_0910CC_A
	2012_0827CC_M
	Resolution 4339
	OATH OF OFFICE of John Henley 2012
	Resolution 4335
	Ordinance 409A
	Ordinance 2331a
	Resolution 4336
	Resolution 4337



